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COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiff Acceleration Bay LLC (“Acceleration Bay”) files this Complaint for Patent
Infringement and Jury Demand against Defendant Electronic Arts Inc. (“Defendant” or “EA™)
and alleges as follows:

THE PARTIES

1 Acceleration Bay is a Delaware limited liability corporation, with its principal
place of business at 370 Bridge Parkway, Redwood City, California 94065.

2. Acceleration Bay is an incubator for next generation businesses, in particular
companies that focus on delivering information and content in real-time. Acceleration Bay
focuses on investing in and supporting companies that further the dissemination of technological
advancements.

3. Acceleration Bay aso collaborates with inventors and research institutions to
anayze and identify important technologica problems, generate new solutions to these
problems, and bring those solutions to market through its partnerships with existing companies
and startups.

4, On information and belief, EA is a Delaware corporation with its principal place
of business at 209 Redwood Shores Parkway, Redwood City, California 94065.

5. Acceleration Bay isinformed and believes that EA makes, uses, sells, offersfor
sale, and/or imports into the United States and this District products and services that utilize
multiplayer or multisystem network technology as claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents
(defined below), including but not limited to, FIFA 15 (including, but not limited to Pro Club
Mode), NHL 15 (including, but not limited to Online Team Play), Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14

(including, but not limited to Connected Tournaments), Crysis 3 (including, but not limited to
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multiplayer modes Deathmatch, Team Deathmatch, Hunter Mode, Crash Site, Spears, Capture
the Relay, Extraction, and Assault), and Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare (including, but not
l[imited to multiplayer modes Welcome Mat, Team Vanquish, Gardens & Graveyards, Classic
Mode, Garden Ops, and Ghome Bomb).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. This action arises under the Patent Act, 35 U.S.C. 8 101 et seq. This Court has
original jurisdiction over this controversy pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1331 and 1338.

7. Venueis proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1391(b) and (c) and/or
1400(b).

8. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant. Upon information and
belief, Defendant does business in this District and has, and continues to, infringe and/or induce
the infringement in this District. On information and belief, Defendant is incorporated in the
State of Delaware. 1n addition, the Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because it has
established minimum contacts with the forum and the exercise of jurisdiction would not offend
traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.

THE PATENTSIN-SUIT

0. Acceleration Bay owns U.S. Patent No. 6,701,344; U.S. Patent No. 6,714,966
U.S. Patent No. 6,732,147; U.S. Patent No. 6,829,634; U.S. Patent No. 6,910,069; and U.S.
Patent No. 6,920,497 (collectively referred to as the “ Acceleration Bay Patents’).

10. On March 2, 2004, U.S. Patent No. 6,701,344 (“the * 344 Patent”), entitled
DISTRIBUTED GAME ENVIRONMENT, wasissued to Fred B. Holt and Virgil E. Bourassa.
A true and correct copy of the ‘344 Patent is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit 1 and is

incorporated by reference herein.
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11.  All rights, title, and interest in the * 344 Patent have been assigned to Acceleration
Bay, which isthe sole owner of the ‘344 Patent.

12.  The ‘344 Patent is generally directed towards systems for an effective broadcast
technique in agame environment using a regular network. By implementing such a broadcast
technique, the system is able to provide a broadcast channel using an underlying network system
that sends messages on a point to point basis, providing efficiency and reliability to a gaming
environment.

13. On March 30, 2004, U.S. Patent No. 6,714,966 (“the ‘966 Patent”), entitled
INFORMATION DELIVERY SERVICE, was issued to Fred B. Holt and Virgil E. Bourassa. A
true and correct copy of the ‘966 Patent is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit 2 and is
incorporated by reference herein.

14.  All rights, title, and interest in the * 966 Patent have been assigned to Acceleration
Bay, who is the sole owner of the ‘966 Patent.

15. The ‘966 Patent is generally directed towards systems for providing an
information delivery service using aregular network. One of the ways thisis accomplished is by
sending data through neighbor participants.

16. On May 4, 2004, U.S. Patent No. 6,732,147 (“the ‘147 Patent”), entitled
LEAVING A BROADCAST CHANNEL, was issued to Fred B. Holt and Virgil E. Bourassa. A
true and correct copy of the ‘147 Patent is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit 3and is
incorporated by reference herein.

17.  All rights, title, and interest in the * 147 Patent have been assigned to Acceleration

Bay, who is the sole owner of the * 147 Patent.
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18.  The‘147 Patent is generally directed towards methods and systems for leaving a
broadcast channel. One of the ways this is accomplished is by sending messages to a second
computer, so that the second computer can connect to athird computer to maintain aregular
network.

19.  On December 7, 2004, U.S. Patent No. 6,829,634 (“the ‘634 Patent”), entitled
BROADCASTING NETWORK, wasissued to Fred B. Holt and Virgil E. Bourassa. A true and
correct copy of the ‘634 Patent is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit 4 and is incorporated by
reference herein.

20.  Allrights, title, and interest in the * 634 Patent have been assigned to Acceleration
Bay, who is the sole owner of the ‘634 Patent.

21. The'634 Patent is generally directed towards systems for broadcasting data
across aregular network. One of the waysthisis accomplished is by sending data received from
neighbor participants to other neighbor participants. This creates reliability in the regular
network.

22. On June 21, 2005, U.S. Patent No. 6,910,069 (“the ‘069 Patent”), entitled
JOINING A BROADCAST CHANNEL, was issued to Fred B. Holt and Virgil E. Bourassa. A
true and correct copy of the ‘069 Patent is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit 5and is
incorporated by reference herein.

23.  Allrights, title, and interest in the 069 Patent have been assigned to Acceleration
Bay, who is the sole owner of the ‘069 Patent.

24.  The'069 Patent is generally directed towards methods for adding a participant to
anetwork without placing a high overhead on the underlying network. One of the waysthisis

accomplished is by identifying a pair of participants that are connected to the network,
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disconnecting the identified pair from each other, and then connecting a seeking participant to
the identified pair.

25. On July 19, 2005, U.S. Patent No. 6,920,497 (“the ‘497 Patent”), entitled
CONTACTING A BROADCAST CHANNEL, was issued to Fred B. Holt and Virgil E.
Bourassa. A true and correct copy of the ‘497 Patent is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit 6
and isincorporated by reference herein.

26.  All rights, title, and interest in the ‘497 Patent have been assigned to Acceleration
Bay, who is the sole owner of the ‘497 Patent.

27.  The'497 Patent is generally directed towards methods and systems for contacting
abroadcast channel. One of the ways thisis accomplished is by the seeking computer using a
selected call-in port to request that the portal computer coordinate the connection of the seeking
computer.

THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS

28. FIFA 15: Acceleration Bay isinformed and believes that FIFA 15 products and
related services utilize the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents to offer a
multiplayer or multisystem gaming environment to its players. Acceleration Bay isinformed and
believes that these players operate within FIFA 15’s gaming environment as individual playersin

11 vs. 11 online gamepl ay.
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NEXT SEARCH BEGINS IN:
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https://www.easports.com/fifa/news/2014/fifa-15-pro-cl ubs-and-other-modes.

29.  Accderation Bay isinformed and believes that FIFA 15 products and services
utilize the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents to perform many
functionalities within its gaming environment.

30.  These products and servicesinclude, but are not limited to, FIFA’s Pro Club
mode, which allows individual playersfrom different locations to interact and communicate with

each other inside FIFA 15’'s gaming environment:
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PRO CLUBS

Create and customise your Pro. then earn accomplishmenits to grow your and unlock new gear.
Join a ciub to play onbkne as your favourite position in up to T v 11 matc ry to get o Division 1

CREATE A PRO GROW YOUR PRO I0IN A CLUB WIN SILVERWARE

Visit www easport=footbaliclub.ocom ta create a8 Game Face. Select Download Game
Face from thie Edit Pro menu to apply it &0 your pro,

Advance

http://fifasoccerbl og.com/blog/fifa-15-mode-improvements-revea ed/fif a-15-pro-clubs-

splash/#main; see also

MATCH LOBBY
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Raserve Next Match

Chat

Enter Message

https://www.easports.com/fifa/news/2014/fifa-15-pro-cl ubs-and-other-modes;
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a WE ARE THE DEGS
" ICE ol 0one. Your chibs has won the Dnmon 0 oo XP

i a Fithe: XP i

MY PRO CLUB MMN»li.i.'iElL''f LEADERBOARDS

DROP-IN MATCH
® 0 Playing Pro Chubs

STATISTICS

Games Played
Goals
Assists
i Shots
Man of the Match

Average Rating

€3 Select . (® Back
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https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=knyj8nwOY xo.




Case 1:15-cv-00282-UNA Document 1 Filed 03/30/15 Page 10 of 48 PagelD #: 10

31l.  Acceeration Bay isaso informed and believes that FIFA 15 uses the network
technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents to allow playersto leave agamein the

middle of a match without affecting other players. See, e.g.,

Whenewver a conneciion problem huris how vou piay a game, it is usually referred as 3 DMNF, or Did

Mot Finish, prablem

DMF izsues can show-up in your games due to:
v |nterrupted ISP connections
v Server-lssues on our side of things
« Peer-fo-peer connecfion problems with your felliow players
This = most common for DMF matches and frades in games that use peer-to-peer
connections, like most of the FIFA franchise
« Wireless interference over Wi-Fi

» Ciher-playver caused behavior during gameplay, like “rage quitiing.”

http://hel p.ea.com/au/arti cl e/transacti ons-and-matches-that-did-not-finish/.

32.  Acceeration Bay isinformed and believes that FIFA 15 provides a peer-to-peer

network for its multiplayer modes. See

If you're having ssues on a peer-to-peer connection:

Some EA games, ke much of the FIFA series, use a pear-lo-peer conneclion, or a connection
shared babtwean you and one or more othar players--rather than say, on a hosted-server like with
most Battletisld tes--for online gameplay and matchmaking

Wa'va noticed thatl players with their routers sel to use Internet Protocol version 6, or IPvE, for thear
connectons tend to have compatibliity I=sues with players using the more common [Pyl
= For instance. If one player is on an already-poor |PvE connection then all players afe usually
disconnacted

http://help.ea.com/en/articl e/l osing-connection-to-ea-servers; see also

http://www.easports.com/eaf orum/posts/1i st/840/8379038.page; http://www.fifauteam.com/fifa-

14-connection-troubl eshooting-guide/.

33. NHL15: Acceleration Bay isinformed and believes that NHL 15 products and
related services utilize the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents to offer a
multiplayer or multisystem gaming environment to its players. Acceleration Bay isinformed and
believes that these players operate within NHL 15’s gaming environment as individual playersin

5vs. 5 online gameplay.

10
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https://www.easports.com/nhl/news/2014/nhl-15-game-notes;

http://www.operationsports.com/news/774131/nhl-15-patch-104-avail abl e-now-full -detail s-

included/.

34.  Acceeration Bay isinformed and believes that NHL 15 products and related
services utilize the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents to perform many
functionalities within its gaming environment.

35.  These products and services include, but are not limited to, NHL 15's Online
Team Play mode, which allows individual players from different locations to interact and

communicate with each other inside NHL 15’ s gaming environment:

11
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http://www.goodgamebro.com/2014/10/21/nhl-15-update-returns-online-team-pl ay-adds-gm-

draft/;

Members in Session

13
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https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0rY [940BPtM.

36. Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14: Acceleration Bay isinformed and believes that

Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 products and related services utilize the network technology claimed
in the Acceleration Bay Patents to offer amultiplayer or multisystem gaming environment to its
players. Acceleration Bay isinformed and believes that these players operate within Tiger
Woods PGA Tour 14's gaming environment as individual playersin up to 24 player Connected

Tournaments.

CONNECTED TOURNAMENTS

Ini Live Tournarsents, players from across the world competes for top of the leaderboards in

1 Round or 4 Round events.

You can now play simultaneously with up to 24 other players, and walch ball arcs fly through
the air as you play. You can also voice chal with anyone playing the tournament or with
members of your Country Chub.

During active pro toumaments, the Play the Pros option iz available; and plavers ame allowed 1o
compete slongside actual pros.

See Exhibit 7 (Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 XBOX 360 Manual —

http://d2ro3gwxdn69cl .cl oudfront.net/manual s/ti ger-woods-pga-tour-14-

manuals Microsoft%20X BOX360.pdf).

37.  Accderation Bay isinformed and believes that Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14
products and related services utilize the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay
Patents to perform many functionalities within its gaming environment.

38.  These products and servicesinclude, but are not limited to, Tiger Woods PGA
Tour 14’'s Connected Tournament, which allows individual players from different locations to
interact and communicate with each other inside Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14’s gaming

environment:

14
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http://bleacherreport.com/arti cl es/1581636-ti ger-woods-pga-tour-14-gamepl ay-revi ew-and-

features-for-hit-golf-video-game.

39. Crysis3: Acceleration Bay isinformed and believes that Crysis 3 utilizes the
network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents to perform multiple functionalities
including multiplayer modes Deathmatch, Team Deathmatch, Hunter Mode, Crash Site, Spears,

Capture the Relay, Extraction, and Assault. See, e.g., http://help.ea.com/en/article/Crysis-3-

Multiplayer-and-Online-FAQ/; http://www.ign.com/wikis/crysis-3/Game Modes/. Acceleration

Bay isinformed and believes that Crysis 3 provides a peer-to-peer network for its multiplayer

modes. See http://www.crysis.com/forums/viewtopic.php?f=69& t=62587.

40.  Acceleration Bay isinformed and believes Crysis 3 allows playersto
communicate using the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents. Asaway
of example and not alimitation, Crysis 3 provides a multiplayer mode, such as “Deathmatch,”
where up to twelve participants can simultaneously interact and communicate with each other

utilizing the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents.

< ELIMINATE ENEMIES -

£
E
£
-
3

16
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https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8udY p310uak; http://www.ign.com/wikis/crysis-

3/Deathmatch?objectid=132098.

41.  Asaway of another example and not alimitation, Crysis 3 provides a multiplayer
mode, such as “Team Deathmatch,” where multiple participants can also simultaneously interact
and communicate with each other utilizing the network technology claimed in the Acceleration

Bay Patentsin a6 vs. 6 team game.

17
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https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=R wJoCx7yBE; http://www.ign.com/wikis/crysis-

3/Team Deathmatch?objectid=132098.

18
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42.  Asaway of another example and not alimitation, Crysis 3 provides a multiplayer
mode, such as “Hunter Mode,” where multiple participants can aso simultaneously interact and

communicate with each other utilizing the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay

Patentsin a 10 vs. 2 team game.

http://www.ign.com/wikis/crysis-3/Hunter M ode?obj ectid=132098.

43.  Asaway of another example and not alimitation, Crysis 3 provides a multiplayer
mode, such as “Crash Site,” where multiple participants can also simultaneously interact and
communicate with each other utilizing the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay

Patentsin a6 vs. 6 team game.

19
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B4op using X-PAC MORTAR

PLAY-WITH FRIERDS

PEREIHAL

Kill 3 enemies with melee

ERYRER: MECHABETH

Jaztray aa enemy Ploger using a SCAR
S0UAD

Assigned an eisiag a squad

LOBEY: <MrWanmun

Kill 2 enamies with M I7 Frag Granodes

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NVyoWi XM Dvo; http://www.ign.com/wikis/crysis-

3/Crash Site?objectid=132098.

44.  Asaway of another example and not alimitation, Crysis 3 provides a multiplayer
mode, such as “ Spears,” where multiple participants can also simultaneously interact and
communicate with each other utilizing the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay

Patentsin a6 vs. 6 team game.

20
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3/Spears?obj ectid=132098.

45.  Asaway of another example and not alimitation, Crysis 3 provides a multiplayer
mode, such as “Capture the Relay,” where multiple participants can also simultaneoudly interact
and communicate with each other utilizing the network technology claimed in the Acceleration

Bay Patentsin a6 vs. 6 team game.

21
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CAPFT THE RELAY
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LUTOMOTE: OFF
| o wewrm out of the video ) s
https.//www.youtube.com/watch?v=EnzL sGekidA; http://www.ign.com/wikis/crysis-

3/Capture the Relay?objectid=132098.

46.  Asaway of another example and not alimitation, Crysis 3 provides a multiplayer
mode, such as “Extraction,” where multiple participants can also simultaneously interact and
communicate with each other utilizing the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay

Patentsin a6 vs. 6 team game. http://www.ign.com/wikis/crysis-3/Extraction?objectid=132098.

47. Asaway of another example and not alimitation, Crysis 3 provides a multiplayer
mode, such as “Assault,” where multiple participants can also simultaneously interact and
communicate with each other utilizing the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay

Patentsin a6 vs. 6 team game.

22
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AIRPORT ROUND &/ &

CELL

# BAWERTES

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=eanvvfrKtAo; http://www.ign.com/wikis/crysis-

3/Assault?objectid=132098

48. Plantsvs. Zombies: Garden Warfare: Acceleration Bay isinformed and

believes that Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare utilizes the network technology claimed in the
Acceleration Bay Patents to perform multiple functionalities including multiplayer modes
Welcome Mat, Team Vanquish, Gardens & Graveyards, Classic Mode, Garden Ops, and Gnome

Bomb. See, e.g., http://help.ea.com/en/article/game-modes-in-pvz-garden-warfare/. Asaway of

23
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example and not alimitation, Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare provides multiplayer modes
such as Team Vanquish, which is a multiplayer mode where up to 24 online players face off
against each other, using the network technology claimed in the Acceleration Bay Patents. See

http://hel p.ea.com/en/arti cle/game-modes-in-pvz-garden-warfare/; see also

XBOX ONE T

24-player multiplayer action: Choose your side, plants or zombies, in
24-player online battles

Customization: Personalize your favorite plants and zombies with
hundreds of unigue items and customizations

4-player online co-op: Join forces with friends in online 4-player
cooperative mode

Mew plants and zombies: Powerful new plants and zombies with a huge
vanety of abiities

Expansive world: Over 10 unique multiplayer and cooperative
batflegrounds

24-player multiplayer action: Choose your side, plants or zombies, in
24-player online battles.

Requires Xbox Live Gold and an internet connec tion to play

24
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http://www.pl aystati onlifestyl e.net/2014/08/22/pl ants-vs-zombi es-garden-warfare-review-p4/.

EA'SINFRINGEMENT OF ACCELERATION BAY'SPATENTS

49, Defendant has been and is now infringing the Acceleration Bay Patents (i.e., the
‘344 Patent, ' 966 Patent, ‘ 147 Patent, ‘634 Patent, ‘069 Patent, and ‘497 Patent) in thisjudicial
District, and elsewhere in the United States by, among other things, making, using, importing,
selling, and/or offering for sale the claimed system and methods on FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger
Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare.

50. In addition to directly infringing the Acceleration Bay Patents pursuant to 35
U.S.C. § 271(a), either literaly or under the doctrine of equivalents, or both, Defendant
indirectly infringes the * 147 Patent, * 069 Patent, and ‘497 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(b)
by instructing, directing and/or requiring others, including its users and devel opers, to perform
all or some of the steps of the method claims, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents,

or both, of the ‘147 Patent, ‘ 069 Patent, and ‘497 Patent.

25
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COUNT |
(Direct Infringement of the ‘344 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(a))

51.  Acceleration Bay repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, asif fully set
forth herein, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs, as set forth above.

52. Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe one or more claims of the ‘344
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

53. Defendant’ s infringement is based upon literal infringement or infringement
under the doctrine of equivalents, or both.

54. Defendant’ s acts of making, using, importing, selling, and/or offering for sale
infringing products and services have been without the permission, consent, authorization, or
license of Acceleration Bay.

55. Defendant’ s infringement includes, but is not limited to, the manufacture, use,
sale, importation and/or offer for sale of Defendant’ s products and services, including, but not
limited to, FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies:
Garden Warfare, which embody the patented invention of the ‘344 Patent.

56. Defendant’ s FIFA 15 products infringe the * 344 Patent through, at minimum, its
Pro Club technology, which alows individual players from different locations to communicate
and interact with each other using a broadcast technique in which a broadcast channel uses an
underlying network system to send messages on a point-to-point basis.

57. Defendant’s NHL 15 products infringe the * 344 Patent through, at minimum, its
Online Team Play technology, which allowsindividual players from different locations to
communicate and interact with each other using a broadcast technique in which a broadcast

channel uses an underlying network system to send messages on a point-to-point basis.

26
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58. Defendant’ s Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 products infringe the * 344 Patent
through, at minimum, its Connected Tournaments technology, which allows individual players
from different locations to communicate and interact with each other using a broadcast technique
in which a broadcast channel uses an underlying network system to send messages on a point-to-
point basis.

59. Defendant’ s Crysis 3 products infringe the * 344 Patent through, at minimum, its
multiplayer technology, which allows individua players from different locations to communicate
and interact with each other using a broadcast technique in which a broadcast channel uses an
underlying network system to send messages on a point-to-point basis.

60. Defendant’ s Plants vs. Zombies. Garden Warfare products infringe the * 344
Patent through, at minimum, its multiplayer technology, which alows individua players from
different locations to communicate and interact with each other using a broadcast techniquein
which abroadcast channel uses an underlying network system to send messages on a point-to-
point basis.

61. Asaresult of Defendant’ s unlawful activities, Acceleration Bay has suffered and
will continue to suffer irreparable harm for which there is no adequate remedy at law.
Accordingly, Acceleration Bay is entitled to preliminary and/or permanent injunctive relief.

62. Defendant’ sinfringement of the * 344 Patent has injured and continuesto injure
Acceleration Bay in an amount to be proven at trial.

COUNT 11
(Direct Infringement of the ‘966 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(a))

63.  Acceleration Bay repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, asif fully set

forth herein, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs, as set forth above.

27
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64. Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe one or more claims of the ‘966
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

65. Defendant’ s infringement is based upon literal infringement or infringement
under the doctrine of equivalents, or both.

66. Defendant’ s acts of making, using, importing, selling, and/or offering for sale
infringing products and services have been without the permission, consent, authorization, or
license of Acceleration Bay.

67. Defendant’ s infringement includes, but is not limited to, the manufacture, use,
sale, importation and/or offer for sale of Defendant’ s products and services, including but not
limited to, FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies:
Garden Warfare, which embody the patented invention of the ‘966 Patent.

68. Defendant’ s FIFA 15 products infringe the * 966 Patent through, at minimum, its
Pro Club technology, which allows individual players from different locations to interact and
communicate with each other over a computer network for providing an information delivery
service for aplurality of participants, whereby information is sent on a point-to-point basis.

69. Defendant’s NHL 15 products infringe the * 966 Patent through, at minimum, its
Online Team Play technology, which allowsindividual players from different locations to
interact and communicate with each other over a computer network for providing an information
delivery service for aplurality of participants, whereby information is sent on a point-to-point
basis.

70. Defendant’ s Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 products infringe the * 966 Patent
through, at minimum, its Connected Tournaments technology, which allows individual players

from different locations to interact and communicate with each other over a computer network
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for providing an information delivery service for a plurality of participants, whereby information
IS sent on a point-to-point basis.

71. Defendant’ s Crysis 3 products infringe the * 966 Patent through, at minimum, its
multiplayer technology, which allows individua players from different locations to interact and
communicate with each other over a computer network for providing an information delivery
service for aplurality of participants, whereby information is sent on a point-to-point basis.

72. Defendant’ s Plants vs. Zombies. Garden Warfare products infringe the 966
Patent through, at minimum, its multiplayer technology, which alows individual players from
different locations to interact and communicate with each other over a computer network for
providing an information delivery service for aplurality of participants, whereby information is
sent on a point-to-point basis.

73.  Asaresult of Defendant’ s unlawful activities, Acceleration Bay has suffered and
will continue to suffer irreparable harm for which there is no adequate remedy at law.
Accordingly, Acceleration Bay is entitled to preliminary and/or permanent injunctive relief.

74. Defendant’ s infringement of the 966 Patent has injured and continuesto injure
Acceleration Bay in an amount to be proven at trial.

COUNT 111
(Direct Infringement of the ‘147 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(a))

75.  Acceleration Bay repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, asif fully set
forth herein, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs, as set forth above.

76. Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe one or more claims of the ‘147
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

77. Defendant’ s infringement is based upon literal infringement or infringement

under the doctrine of equivalents, or both.
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78. Defendant’ s acts of making, using, importing, selling, and/or offering for sale
infringing products and services have been without the permission, consent, authorization or
license of Acceleration Bay.

79. Defendant’ s infringement of one or more method claims of the * 147 Patent isa
result of Defendant’s own actions and/or its actions in combination with the actions of users,
developers, and/or customers to perform the steps of the claimed methods.

80. Defendant has direction or control over users' performance of the steps of claimed
methods as evident from and through the End User License Agreement (EULA) and Terms of
Service for its products and service that users must agree to prior to use of Defendant’ s products
or services (examples attached hereto as Exhibits 8-9). Defendant maintains control at all times
over the operation and dissemination of content by users of Defendant’ s products and services,
and the users are contractually required to use only Defendant’ s software to access Defendant’ s
online services and features. EULA and Terms of Service for Defendant’ s products and services
(examples attached hereto as Exhibits 8-9) state that Defendant owns all content appearing or
generated from its products or services, and has the right to use, adapt, reproduce, and transmit
such content in any manner and in any medium or forum. (See, e.g., Ex. 9 at Sections 2, 6, 7,
and 13 of the Terms of Service and Ex. 8 at Sections 1.C, 1.D, 1.E, and 2 of the EULA FIFA 15).

81. Defendant’ s infringement includes, but is not limited to, the manufacture, use,
sale, importation and/or offer for sale of Defendant’ s products and services, including but not
limited to, FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies:
Garden Warfare, which embody the patented invention of the * 147 Patent.

82. Defendant’ s FIFA 15 products infringe the * 147 Patent through, at minimum, its

Pro Club technology, which alows individual players from different locations to interact and
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communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer network, and where individual players
can leave the computer network by sending messages to a second computer so that the second
computer can connect to athird computer to maintain aregular network.

83. Defendant’s NHL 15 products infringe the * 147 Patent through, at minimum, its
Online Team Play technology, which allowsindividual players from different locations to
interact and communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer network, and where
individual players can leave the computer network by sending messages to a second computer so
that the second computer can connect to athird computer to maintain aregular network.

84. Defendant’ s Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 products infringe the * 147 Patent
through, at minimum, its Connected Tournaments technology, which allows individual players
from different locations to interact and communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer
network, and where individua players can leave the computer network by sending messagesto a
second computer so that the second computer can connect to a third computer to maintain a
regular network.

85. Defendant’ s Crysis 3 products infringe the * 147 Patent through, at minimum, its
multiplayer technology, which allows individua players from different locations to interact and
communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer network, and where individual players
can leave the computer network by sending messages to a second computer so that the second
computer can connect to athird computer to maintain aregular network.

86. Defendant’ s Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare productsinfringe the * 147
Patent through, at minimum, its multiplayer technology, which allowsindividua players from
different locations to interact and communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer

network, and where individua players can leave the computer network by sending messagesto a
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second computer so that the second computer can connect to a third computer to maintain a
regular network.

87.  Asaresult of Defendant’ s unlawful activities, Acceleration Bay has suffered and
will continue to suffer irreparable harm for which there is no adequate remedy at law.
Accordingly, Acceleration Bay is entitled to preliminary and/or permanent injunctive relief.

88. Defendant’ s infringement of the 147 Patent has injured and continues to injure
Acceleration Bay in an amount to be proven at tria.

COUNT IV
(Indirect Infringement of the * 147 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(b))

89.  Acceleration Bay repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, asif fully set
forth herein, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs, as set forth above.

90. Defendant has induced and continues to induce infringement of at least claims 1-
10 of the ‘147 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

91. In addition to directly infringing the * 147 Patent, Defendant indirectly infringes
the * 147 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) by instructing, directing and/or requiring others,
including but not limited to, its customers, users and developers, to perform one or more of the
steps of the method claims, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, of the ‘147
Patent, where all the steps of the method claims are performed by either Defendant, its
customers, users or developers, or some combination thereof. Defendant knew or was willfully
blind to the fact that it was inducing others, including customers, users and developers, to
infringe by practicing, either themselves or in conjunction with Defendant, one or more method
claims of the ‘147 Patent.

92. Defendant knowingly and actively aided and abetted the direct infringement of

the * 147 Patent by instructing, encouraging, and providing a mechanism for its customers, users,
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and developersto use FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs.
Zombies: Garden Warfare in an infringing manner and distributing guidelines and instructions to
third parties on how to use the multiplayer functionalities of FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods
PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare in an infringing manner.

93. Defendant actively and intentionally maintains websites, including
https://www.ea.com/ and https.//www.easports.com/ and its ancillary components to encourage
potential customers, users and devel opers to use multiplayer functionalities of FIFA 15, NHL 15,
Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies. Garden Warfare in an infringing
manner.

94. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of FIFA 15 on its websites. Examples of these

instructions can be found at https://www.easports.com/uk/fifa/news/2014/fifa-15-pro-clubs-and-

other-modes/ (attached hereto as Exhibit 10); http://forum.ea.com/uk/forums/show/197.page

(attached hereto as Exhibit 11).
95. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of NHL 15 on its websites. Examples of these

instructions can be found at https://www.easports.com/nhl/news/2014/nhl-15-october-content-

update (attached hereto as Exhibit 12); http://answers.ea.com/t5/NHL-15/bd-p/NHL-15 (attached
hereto as Exhibit 13).

96. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 on its websites.

Examples of these instructions can be found at http://www.ea.com/uk/tiger-woods-pga-tour-14
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(attached hereto as Exhibit 14); http://forum.ea.com/eaforum/forums/show/562.page (attached

hereto as Exhibit 15).

97. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of Crysis, including Deathmatch, Team Deathmatch,
Hunter Mode, Crash Site, Spears, Capture the Relay, Extraction, and Assault on its websites.

Examples of these instructions can be found at http://www.ea.com/crysis-3 (attached hereto as

Exhibit 16); http://www.ea.com/crysis-3/videos/crysis-3-multiplayer-beta-gamepl ay-tutorial

(attached hereto as Exhibit 17).

98. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of Plants vs. Zombies. Garden Warfare, including
Welcome Mat, Team Vanquish, Gardens & Graveyards, Classic Mode, Garden Ops, and Gnome
Bomb on its websites. Examples of these instructions can be found at

http://hel p.ea.com/en/article/game-modes-in-pvz-garden-warfare/ (attached hereto as Exhibit

18); http://www.pvzgardenwarfare.com/ (attached hereto as Exhibit 19);

http://www.ea.com/uk/plants-zombi es-garden-warfare/videos/'boss-mode-cl asses-and-

multiplayer (attached hereto as Exhibit 20); http://www.ea.com/garden-warfare (attached hereto

as Exhibit 21).

99. Defendant has had knowledge of the * 147 Patent at least as of the timeit learned
of this action for infringement, and by continuing its actions described above, Defendant has had
the specific intent to, or was willfully blind to the fact that its actions would, induce infringement

of the ‘ 147 Patent.
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COUNT V
(Direct Infringement of the ‘634 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(a))

100. Acceleration Bay repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, as if fully set
forth herein, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs, as set forth above.

101. Defendant hasinfringed and continues to infringe one or more claims of the ‘634
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

102. Defendant’s infringement is based upon literal infringement or infringement
under the doctrine of equivalents, or both.

103. Defendant’s acts of making, using, importing, selling, and/or offering for sale
infringing products and services have been without the permission, consent, authorization, or
license of Acceleration Bay.

104. Defendant’s infringement includes, but is not limited to, the manufacture, use,
sale, importation and/or offer for sale of Defendant’ s products and services, including but not
limited to, FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies:
Garden Warfare, which embody the patented invention of the ‘634 Patent.

105. Defendant’s FIFA 15 productsinfringe the ‘634 Patent through, at minimum, its
Pro Club technology, which allows individual players from different locations to communicate
and interact with each other by sending data received from other neighboring players to other
neighboring players, thereby creating reliability in the network.

106. Defendant’s NHL 15 products infringe the ‘634 Patent through, at minimum, its
Online Team Play technology, which allowsindividual players from different locations to
communicate and interact with each other by sending data received from other neighboring

players to other neighboring players, thereby creating reliability in the network.
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107. Defendant’s Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 products infringe the * 634 Patent
through, at minimum, its Connected Tournaments technology, which allows individual players
from different locations to communicate and interact with each other by sending data received
from other neighboring players to other neighboring players, thereby creating reliability in the
network.

108. Defendant’s Crysis 3 productsinfringe the ‘634 Patent through, at minimum, its
multiplayer technology, which allows individua players from different locations to communicate
and interact with each other by sending data received from other neighboring players to other
neighboring players, thereby creating reliability in the network.

109. Defendant’s Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare products infringe the ‘634
Patent through, at minimum, its multiplayer technology, which alows individua players from
different locations to communicate and interact with each other by sending data received from
other neighboring players to other neighboring players, thereby creating reliability in the
network.

110. Asaresult of Defendant’s unlawful activities, Acceleration Bay has suffered and
will continue to suffer irreparable harm for which there is no adequate remedy at law.
Accordingly, Acceleration Bay is entitled to preliminary and/or permanent injunctive relief.

111. Defendant’sinfringement of the ‘634 Patent has injured and continues to injure
Acceleration Bay in an amount to be proven at trial.

COUNT VI
(Direct Infringement of the ‘069 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(a))

112. Acceleration Bay repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, asif fully set

forth herein, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs, as set forth above.
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113. Defendant hasinfringed and continues to infringe one or more claims of the ‘069
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

114. Defendant’s infringement is based upon literal infringement or infringement
under the doctrine of equivalents, or both.

115. Defendant’s acts of making, using, importing, selling, and/or offering for sale
infringing products and services have been without the permission, consent, authorization or
license of Acceleration Bay.

116. Defendant’s infringement of one or more method claims of the ‘069 Patent is a
result of Defendant’s own actions and/or its actions in combination with the actions of users,
developers, and/or customers to perform the steps of the claimed methods.

117. Defendant has direction or control over users performance of the steps of claimed
methods as evident from and through the End User License Agreement (EULA) and Terms of
Service for its products and service that users must agree to prior to use of Defendant’ s products
or services (examples attached hereto as Exhibits 8-9). Defendant maintains control at all times
over the operation and dissemination of content by users of Defendant’ s products and services,
and the users are contractually required to use only Defendant’ s software to access Defendant’ s
online services and features. EULA and Terms of Service for Defendant’ s products and services
(examples attached hereto as Exhibits 8-9) state that Defendant owns all content appearing or
generated from its products or services, and has the right to use, adapt, reproduce, and transmit
such content in any manner and in any medium or forum. (See, e.g., Ex. 9 at Sections 2, 6, 7,
and 13 of the Terms of Service and Ex. 8 at Sections 1.C, 1.D, 1.E, and 2 of the EULA FIFA 15).

118. Defendant’s infringement includes, but is not limited to, the manufacture, use,

sale, importation and/or offer for sale of Defendant’ s products and services, including but not
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limited to, FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies:
Garden Warfare, which embody the patented invention of the ‘069 Patent.

119. Defendant’s FIFA 15 productsinfringe the ‘069 Patent through, at minimum, its
Pro Club technology, which allows individual players from different locations to interact and
communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer network, and where individual
participants can be added to the network by, for example and not by way of limitation,
identifying apair of participants that are connected to the network, disconnecting the identified
pair from each other, and then connecting a seeking participant to the identified pair.

120. Defendant’s NHL 15 productsinfringe the ‘069 Patent through, at minimum, its
Online Team Play technology, which allowsindividual players from different locations to
interact and communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer network, and where
individual participants can be added to the network by, for example and not by way of limitation,
identifying apair of participants that are connected to the network, disconnecting the identified
pair from each other, and then connecting a seeking participant to the identified pair.

121. Defendant’s Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 products infringe the * 069 Patent
through, at minimum, its Connected Tournaments technology, which allows individual players
from different locations to interact and communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer
network, and where individual participants can be added to the network by, for example and not
by way of limitation, identifying apair of participants that are connected to the network,
disconnecting the identified pair from each other, and then connecting a seeking participant to
the identified pair.

122. Defendant’s Crysis 3 products infringe the ‘069 Patent through, at minimum, its

multiplayer technology, which allows individua players from different locations to interact and
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communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer network, and where individual
participants can be added to the network by, for example and not by way of limitation,
identifying apair of participants that are connected to the network, disconnecting the identified
pair from each other, and then connecting a seeking participant to the identified pair.

123. Defendant’s Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare products infringe the * 069
Patent through, at minimum, its multiplayer technology, which alows individua players from
different locations to interact and communicate with each other over a multi-cast computer
network, and where individual participants can be added to the network by, for example and not
by way of limitation, identifying apair of participants that are connected to the network,
disconnecting the identified pair from each other, and then connecting a seeking participant to
the identified pair.

124. Asaresult of Defendant’s unlawful activities, Acceleration Bay has suffered and
will continue to suffer irreparable harm for which there is no adequate remedy at law.
Accordingly, Acceleration Bay is entitled to preliminary and/or permanent injunctive relief.

125. Defendant’s infringement of the ‘069 Patent has injured and continues to injure
Acceleration Bay in an amount to be proven at tria.

COUNT VII
(Indirect Infringement of the ‘069 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(b))

126. Acceleration Bay repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, as if fully set
forth herein, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs, as set forth above.

127. Defendant hasinduced and continues to induce infringement of claims 1-17 of the
‘069 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

128. In addition to directly infringing the * 069 Patent, Defendant indirectly infringes

the * 069 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) by instructing, directing and/or requiring others,
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including but not limited to, its customers, users and developers, to perform one or more of the
steps of the method claims, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, or both, of the
‘069 Patent, where al the steps of the method claims are performed by either Defendant, its
customers, users or developers, or some combination thereof. Defendant knew or was willfully
blind to the fact that it was inducing others, including customers, users and developers, to
infringe by practicing, either themselves or in conjunction with Defendant, one or more method
claims of the ‘069 Patent.

129. Defendant knowingly and actively aided and abetted the direct infringement of
the * 069 Patent by instructing, encouraging, and providing a mechanism for its customers, users,
and developersto use FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs.
Zombies: Garden Warfare in an infringing manner and distributing guidelines and instructions to
third parties on how to use the multiplayer functionalities of FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods
PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare in an infringing manner.

130. Defendant actively and intentionally maintains websites, including
https://www.ea.com/ and https.//www.easports.com/ and its ancillary components to encourage
potential customers, users and devel opers to use multiplayer functionalities of FIFA 15, NHL 15,
Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies. Garden Warfare in an infringing
manner.

131. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of FIFA 15 on its websites. Examples of these

instructions can be found at https://www.easports.com/uk/fifa/news/2014/fifa-15-pro-clubs-and-

other-modes/ (attached hereto as Exhibit 10); http://forum.ea.com/uk/forums/show/197.page

(attached hereto as Exhibit 11).
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132. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of NHL 15 on its websites. Examples of these

instructions can be found at https://www.easports.com/nhl/news/2014/nhl-15-october-content-

update (attached hereto as Exhibit 12); http://answers.ea.com/t5/NHL -15/bd-p/NHL -15 (attached

hereto as Exhibit 13).
133. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 on its websites.

Examples of these instructions can be found at http://www.ea.com/uk/tiger-woods-pga-tour-14

(attached hereto as Exhibit 14); http://forum.ea.com/eaforum/forums/show/562.page (attached

hereto as Exhibit 15).

134. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of Crysis, including Deathmatch, Team Deathmatch,
Hunter Mode, Crash Site, Spears, Capture the Relay, Extraction, and Assault on its websites.

Examples of these instructions can be found at http://www.ea.com/crysis-3 (attached hereto as

Exhibit 16); http://www.ea.com/crysis-3/videos/crysis-3-multiplayer-beta-gamepl ay-tutorial

(attached hereto as Exhibit 17).

135. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of Plants vs. Zombies. Garden Warfare, including
Welcome Mat, Team Vanquish, Gardens & Graveyards, Classic Mode, Garden Ops, and Gnome
Bomb on its websites. Examples of these instructions can be found at

http://hel p.ea.com/en/article/game-modes-in-pvz-garden-warfare/ (attached hereto as Exhibit

18); http://www.pvzgardenwarfare.com/ (attached hereto as Exhibit 19);

http://www.ea.com/uk/plants-zombi es-garden-warfare/videos/'boss-mode-cl asses-and-
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multiplayer (attached hereto as Exhibit 20); http://www.ea.com/garden-warfare (attached hereto

as Exhibit 21).

136. Defendant has had knowledge of the ‘069 Patent at |east as of the timeit learned
of this action for infringement, and by continuing its actions described above, Defendant has had
the specific intent to, or was willfully blind to the fact that its actions would, induce infringement
of the ‘069 Patent.

COUNT VIII
(Direct Infringement of the ‘497 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(a))

137. Acceleration Bay repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, asif fully set
forth herein, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs, as set forth above.

138. Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe one or more claims of the 497
Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

139. Defendant’s infringement is based upon literal infringement or infringement
under the doctrine of equivalents, or both.

140. Defendant’s acts of making, using, importing, selling, and/or offering for sale
infringing products and services have been without the permission, consent, authorization or
license of Acceleration Bay.

141. Defendant’s infringement of one or more method claims of the ‘497 Patent isa
result of Defendant’s own actions and/or its actions in combination with the actions of users,
developers, and/or customers to perform the steps of the claimed methods.

142. Defendant has direction or control over users performance of the steps of claimed
methods as evident from and through the End User License Agreement (EULA) and Terms of
Service for its products and service that users must agree to prior to use of Defendant’ s products

or services (examples attached hereto as Exhibits 8-9). Defendant maintains control at all times
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over the operation and dissemination of content by users of Defendant’ s products and services,
and the users are contractually required to use only Defendant’ s software to access Defendant’ s
online services and features. EULA and Terms of Service for Defendant’ s products and services
(examples attached hereto as Exhibits 8-9) state that Defendant owns all content appearing or
generated from its products or services, and has the right to use, adapt, reproduce, and transmit
such content in any manner and in any medium or forum. (See, e.g., Ex. 9 at Sections 2, 6, 7,
and 13 of the Terms of Service and Ex. 8 at Sections 1.C, 1.D, 1.E, and 2 of the EULA FIFA 15).

143. Defendant’s infringement includes, but is not limited to, the manufacture, use,
sale, importation and/or offer for sale of Defendant’ s products and services, including, but not
limited to, FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies:
Garden Warfare, which embody the patented invention of the ‘497 Patent.

144. Defendant’s FIFA 15 productsinfringe the ‘497 Patent through, at minimum, its
Pro Club technology, which allows individual players from different locations to interact and
communicate with each other over a computer network through a portal computer.

145. Defendant’s NHL 15 products infringe the ‘497 Patent through, at minimum, its
Online Team Play technology, which allowsindividual players from different locations to
interact and communicate with each other over a computer network through a portal computer.

146. Defendant’s Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 products infringe the ‘497 Patent
through, at minimum, its Connected Tournaments technology, which allows individual players
from different locations to interact and communicate with each other over a computer network

through a portal computer.
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147. Defendant’s Crysis 3 products infringe the ‘497 Patent through, at minimum, its
multiplayer technology, which allows individua players from different locations to interact and
communicate with each other over a computer network through a portal computer.

148. Defendant’s Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare products infringe the ‘497
Patent through, at minimum, its multiplayer technology, which alows individua players from
different locations to interact and communicate with each other over a computer network through
aportal computer.

149. Asaresult of Defendant’s unlawful activities, Acceleration Bay has suffered and
will continue to suffer irreparable harm for which there is no adequate remedy at law.
Accordingly, Acceleration Bay is entitled to preliminary and/or permanent injunctive relief.

150. Defendant’s infringement of the ‘497 Patent has injured and continues to injure
Acceleration Bay in an amount to be proven at tria.

COUNT IX
(Indirect Infringement of the ‘497 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(b))

151. Acceleration Bay repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference, asif fully set
forth herein, the allegations of the preceding paragraphs, as set forth above.

152. Defendant has induced and continues to induce infringement of at least claims 1-8
of the ‘497 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

153. In addition to directly infringing the ‘497 Patent, Defendant indirectly infringes
the ‘497 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) by instructing, directing and/or requiring others,
including, but not limited to, its customers, users and devel opers, to perform one or more of the
steps of the method claims, either literally or under the doctrine of equivalent, or both, of the
‘497 Patent, where al the steps of the method claims are performed by either Defendant or its

customers, users or developers, or some combination thereof. Defendant knew or was willfully
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blind to the fact that it was inducing others, including customers, users and developers, to
infringe by practicing, either themselves or in conjunction with Defendant, one or more method
claims of the ‘497 Patent.

154. Defendant knowingly and actively aided and abetted the direct infringement of
the ‘497 Patent by instructing, encouraging, and providing a mechanism for its customers, users,
and developersto use FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs.
Zombies: Garden Warfare in an infringing manner and distributing guidelines and instructions to
third parties on how to use the multiplayer functionalities of FIFA 15, NHL 15, Tiger Woods
PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies: Garden Warfare in an infringing manner.

155. Defendant actively and intentionally maintains websites, including
https://www.ea.com/ and https.//www.easports.com/ and its ancillary components to encourage
potential customers, users and devel opers to use multiplayer functionalities of FIFA 15, NHL 15,
Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14, Crysis 3, and Plants vs. Zombies. Garden Warfare in an infringing
manner.

156. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of FIFA 15 on its websites. Examples of these

instructions can be found at https://www.easports.com/uk/fifa/news/2014/fifa-15-pro-clubs-and-

other-modes/ (attached hereto as Exhibit 10); http://forum.ea.com/uk/forums/show/197.page

(attached hereto as Exhibit 11).
157. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of NHL 15 on its websites. Examples of these

instructions can be found at https://www.easports.com/nhl/news/2014/nhl-15-october-content-
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update (attached hereto as Exhibit 12); http://answers.ea.com/t5/NHL -15/bd-p/NHL -15 (attached

hereto as Exhibit 13).
158. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of Tiger Woods PGA Tour 14 on its websites.

Examples of these instructions can be found at http://www.ea.com/uk/tiger-woods-pga-tour-14

(attached hereto as Exhibit 14); http://forum.ea.com/eaforum/forums/show/562.page (attached

hereto as Exhibit 15).

159. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of Crysis, including Deathmatch, Team Deathmatch,
Hunter Mode, Crash Site, Spears, Capture the Relay, Extraction, and Assault on its websites.

Examples of these instructions can be found at http://www.ea.com/crysis-3 (attached hereto as

Exhibit 16); http://www.ea.com/crysis-3/videos/crysis-3-multiplayer-beta-gamepl ay-tutorial

(attached hereto as Exhibit 17).

160. Defendant provides detailed instruction to its customers and users regarding all
aspects of the multiplayer functionalities of Plants vs. Zombies. Garden Warfare, including
Welcome Mat, Team Vanquish, Gardens & Graveyards, Classic Mode, Garden Ops, and Gnome

Bomb on its websites. Examples of these instructions can be found at

http://hel p.ea.com/en/article/game-modes-in-pvz-garden-warfare/ (attached hereto as Exhibit

18); http://www.pvzgardenwarfare.com/ (attached hereto as Exhibit 19);

http://www.ea.com/uk/plants-zombi es-garden-warfare/videos/'boss-mode-cl asses-and-

multiplayer (attached hereto as Exhibit 20); http://www.ea.com/garden-warfare (attached hereto

as Exhibit 21).
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161. Defendant has had knowledge of the ‘497 Patent at least as of the time it learned
of this action for infringement, and by continuing its actions described above, Defendant has had
the specific intent to, or was willfully blind to the fact that its actions would, induce infringement
of the ‘497 Patent.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Acceleration Bay prays for judgment and relief as follows:

A. An entry of judgment holding Defendant has infringed and is infringing the ‘344
Patent, ‘966 Patent, ‘ 147 Patent, ‘634 Patent, ‘ 069 Patent, and ‘497 Patent;

B. An entry of judgment holding Defendant has induced infringement and is
inducing infringement of the ‘147 Patent, ‘069 Patent, and ‘497 Patent;

C. An award to Acceleration Bay of such damages asit shall prove at trial against
Defendant that are adequate to fully compensate Acceleration Bay for Defendant’ s infringement
of the ‘344 Patent, ‘966 Patent, ‘ 147 Patent, ‘634 Patent, ‘069 Patent, and ‘497 Patent, said
damages to be no less than areasonable royalty;

D. A finding that this case is “exceptiona” and an award to Acceleration Bay of its
costs and reasonabl e attorney’ s fees, as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 285;

E. An accounting of all infringing sales and revenues, together with post judgment
interest and prejudgment interest from the first date of infringement of the ‘ 344 Patent, * 966
Patent, ‘147 Patent, ‘ 634 Patent, ‘069 Patent, and ‘497 Patent; and

F. Such further and other relief as the Court may deem proper and just.
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Acceleration Bay demands ajury trial on all issues so triable.

OF COUNSEL:

Paul J. Andre

LisaKobiaka

James R. Hannah

KRAMER LEVIN NAFTALIS &
FRANKEL LLP

990 Marsh Road

Menlo Park, CA 94025

(650) 752-1700

Dated: March 30, 2015
1185356

POTTER ANDERSON & CORROON LLP

By: /4 Philip A. Rovner

Philip A. Rovner (#3215)
Jonathan A. Choa (#5319)
Hercules Plaza

P.O. Box 951

Wilmington, DE 19899
(302) 984-6000

provner @potteranderson.com
|choa@potteranderson.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff Acceleration Bay LLC
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